Minutes of the Meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 9 November 2017

PRESENT -

Councillor Humphrey Reynolds (Chairman); Councillor David Reeve (Vice-Chairman); Councillors Michael Arthur, John Beckett, Lucie Dallen, Neil Dallen, Jan Mason, Tina Mountain, Peter O'Donovan, Martin Olney, Vince Romagnuolo, Clive Smitheram and David Wood (left the Chamber at 8.20pm and returned at 8.45pm)

In Attendance: Councillor Tony Axelrod and Councillor Tella Wormington

Officers present: Mark Berry (Head of Place Development), Danny Surowiak (Principal Solicitor), John Robinson (Planning Officer) and Sandra Dessent (Democratic Services Officer)

34 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

In the interests of openness and transparency, the following declarations were made:

Planning Application 17/00542/FUL - The Royal Automobile Club (RAC), Woodcote Park, Wilmerhatch Lane, Epsom KT18 7EW

Councillor David Wood FCA, Other Interest: Member of the Royal Automobile Club. Did not take part in the deliberations or vote.

Planning Application 17/00542/FUL - The Royal Automobile Club (RAC), Woodcote Park, Wilmerhatch Lane, Epsom KT18 7EW

Councillor Tina Mountain, Other Interest: Owns a private property that backs onto the boundary of the Royal Automobile Club. Did not take part in the deliberations or vote.

35 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 5 October 2017 were agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00001/FUL - DEVELOPMENT SITE 40-52 UPPER HIGH STREET, EPSOM KT17 4QS

Description

Proposed Mixed Use Development comprising food retail store (Use Class A1) together with 30 Residential Apartments, Access, Parking, Servicing and Landscaping (as amended).

Decision

Planning permission is **PERMITTED** subject to the following conditions:

Part A

Subject to a legal agreement being completed and signed to secure the following heads of terms:

- a) The provision of 6 on-site affordable units comprising 2 homes for affordable rent and 4 for shared ownership in accordance with an Affordable Housing Plan. The applicants will be required to reach slab level of construction on 10 units within two years of planning permission having been granted, if not a (viability) review process will be triggered.
- b) Highway improvement measures covering:
- Right turn facility into site
- Relocation and upgrading of bus stop adjacent to store and upgrading of shelter on northern side of Upper High Street.
- Implementation, management and enforcement of the submitted Parking Management Statement.

The Committee authorise the Head of Place Development to grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

- (1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
 - Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- (2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans and documents: 010001 Rev10, 010002 Rev 8, 010003 Rev 10, 010004 Rev 9, 020002 rev 13, 020001 Rev 13, 030001 Rev 1, 16/0916/SK03 Rev B, 16/0916/TK04 Rev A, 16/0916/TK01 Rev D.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).

(3) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of the external materials to be used for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(4) No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and soft landscape proposals, including a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved landscape scheme (with the exception of planting, seeding and turfing) shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015

(5) The development hereby approved shall not be commenced unless and until the proposed vehicular access to Upper High Street has been constructed and provided with visibility zones in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept permanently clear of any obstruction measured from 0.6m above the road surface.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM35 and DM37 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied or first opened for trading unless and until the existing redundant accesses from the site to Upper High Street have been permanently closed and any kerbs, verge, footway, fully reinstated.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM35 and DM37 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(7) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied or first opened for trading unless and until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for and 24 customer cycles and 34 residential cycles to be parked and for the loading and

unloading of 1 vehicle and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking / loading and unloading / turning areas shall be retained and maintained for their designated purposes. 88 retail customer vehicle spaces and 24 residential vehicle spaces

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM35 and DM37 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(8) Prior to the commencement of the development a Travel Plan shall be submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the sustainable development aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework, Surrey County Council's "Travel Plans Good Practice Guide", and in general accordance with the 'Heads of Travel Plan' document. The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented on first occupation and for each and every subsequent occupation of the development, thereafter maintain and develop the Travel Plan to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage travel by means other than private motor vehicles in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM36 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

- (9) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to include details of:
 - (a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
 - (b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - (c) storage of plant and materials
 - (d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
 - (e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
 - (f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation
 - (g) vehicle routing
 - (h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
 - (i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused
 - (j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the hours of 8.00 and 9.15 am nor shall the contractor permit any

HGVs associated with the development at the site to be laid up, waiting, in Church Road (North and South) Alexandra Road, Mill Road during these times

(k) on-site turning for construction vehicles has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety or cause inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM35 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(10) The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until it has achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 110 litres per person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

- (11) Before the development hereby permitted commences and in addition to any assessment provided with the application, a ground contamination investigation and risk assessment must be completed. The scope and detail of these are subject to the approval in writing by the local planning authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by suitably qualified and accredited persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The final written report is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority. The report of the findings must include:
 - (i) details of the extent, scale and nature of contamination
 - (ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:
 - human health
 - property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes
 - adjoining land and occupants
 - groundwaters and surface waters
 - ecological systems
 - o archaeological sites and ancient monuments

(iii) details of viable remedial options, and identification of and justification for the preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with Defra and the Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

(12) The development must be carried out in complete accordance with the approved written report. If unexpected contamination is found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the local planning authority in writing until appropriate remediation has been undertaken.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

(13) A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared by suitably qualified and accredited persons, and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that, after remediation, as a minimum, the site should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

The local planning authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Act 1990.

(14) Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be prepared by suitably qualified and accredited persons and submitted to the local planning authority for written approval.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies 2015.

(15) In the event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development it must be reported in writing to the local planning authority immediately. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development must accord with the approved details. Following completion of the remediation works, a verification report must be prepared by suitably qualified and accredited persons and submitted to the local planning authority for written approval.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(16) A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of the proposed remediation and the provision of reports on the same must be prepared by suitably qualified and accredited persons, both of which are subject to the local planning authority's written approval. Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the remediation

objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried out must be produced by suitably qualified and accredited persons and submitted to the local planning authority. This must be conducted in accordance with Defra and the Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of land Contamination, CLR 11.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(17) A Certificate of Completion shall be prepared by suitably qualified and accredited persons and provided to the local planning authority before occupation of any part of the site by any end user, stating that remediation has been carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme and that 'the site is suitable for the permitted end use'.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

- (18) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the detailed design of the surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. Those details shall include:
 - a) A design that satisfies the SuDS Hierarchy and follows the principles set out in the approved drainage strategy 'Surface Water Strategy, Management and Maintenance Report'
 - b) Detailed drawings showing drainage layout, long or cross sections of each drainage element, pipe sizes and invert and cover levels.
 - c) Appropriate calculations to the elements above showing how the national SuDS standards have been met (if different from approved strategy).
 - d) Details of outline construction phasing and how surface water and any associated pollution risk will be dealt with during the construction of the development, and how any on site drainage systems will be protected and maintained.

- e) Details of who will maintain the drainage elements and their associated maintenance regimes.
- f) Details of where any exceedance flows (i.e. rainfall greater than design or flows following blockages) would run to, avoiding risks to people and property.

Reason: To prevent an increased risk of flooding and to prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM19 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(19) Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the Sustainable Urban Drainage System has been constructed as per the agreed scheme.

Reason: To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System is designed to the technical standards in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM19 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(20) Prior to above ground works commencing details of the lighting to the food retail store outside operational hours which should be designed to minimise the risk of light spillage beyond the development site boundary shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and the lighting shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(21) The food retail store use hereby permitted shall not operate other than between the hours of 08.00- 22.00 hours Mondays to Saturdays (inclusive) and 10.00-17.00 hours on Sundays.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(22) Prior to the commencement of development, detailed elevational drawings for the internal courtyard at second and third floor level for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with

Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(23) No deliveries shall be taken at or dispatched from the site except between the hours of 07.00-21.00 Mondays to Saturdays and 09.00 – 17.00 on Sundays.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy DM10of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Informatives:

- (1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.
- (2) The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works required by the above condition(s), the County Highway Authority may require necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street furniture/equipment.
- (3) When a temporary access is approved or an access is to be closed as a condition of planning permission an agreement with, or licence issued by, the Highway Authority Local Highways Service will require that the redundant dropped kerb be raised and any verge or footway crossing be reinstated to conform with the existing adjoining surfaces at the developers expense.
- (4) The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any works on the highway. The applicant is advised that prior approval must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, or verge to form a vehicle crossover to install dropped kerbs.

<u>www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs</u>

- (5) A pedestrian inter-visibility splay of 2m by 2m shall be provided on each side of the access, the depth measured from the back of the footway and the widths outwards from the edges of the access. No fence, wall or other obstruction to visibility between 0.6m and 2m in height above ground level shall be erected within the area of such splays.
- (6) The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct the public highway by the erection of scaffolding,

hoarding or any other device or apparatus for which a licence must be sought from the Highway Authority Local Highways Service.

- (7) The developer is advised that a standard fee may be charged for input to, and future monitoring of, any Travel Plan.
- (8) Any unilateral undertaking shall be in accordance with Surrey County Council's standard format.
- (9) The developer would be expected to instruct an independent transportation data collection company to undertake the monitoring survey. This survey should conform to a TRICS Multi-Modal Survey format consistent with the UK Standard for Measuring Travel Plan Impacts as approved by the Highway Authority. To ensure that the survey represents typical travel patterns, the organisation taking ownership of the travel plan will need to agree to being surveyed only within a specified annual quarter period but with no further notice of the precise survey dates. The Developer would be expected to fund the survey validation and data entry costs.
- (10) The water efficiency standard required under condition 10 has been adopted by the local planning authority through the Development Management Policies 2015. This standard is the 'optional requirement' detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved Document (AD Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A paragraph A1.

The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through either:

- (a) using the 'fittings approach' where water fittings are installed as per the table at 2.1 in the AD or
- (b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the AD Part G Appendix A.
- (11) This form of development is considered liable for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or more of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new dwelling, even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a standardised, non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per square metre, and are charged on the net additional floorspace generated by a development.

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course.

More information and the charging schedule are available online

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-advice/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-guidance

- (12) Works related to the construction of the development hereby permitted, including works of demolition or preparation prior to building operations shall not take place other than between the hours of 08.00 to 18.00 hours Mondays to Fridays; 08.00 to 13.00 hours Saturdays; with no work on Saturday afternoons (after 13.00 hours), Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays.
- (13) The Council request that supermarket delivery vehicles (HGVs) be routed so that they approach the site in an Easterly direction and leave in a Westerly direction thus making only right-turn manoeuvres into and out of the site. This is to prevent the occurrence of vehicles crossing into the on-coming carriageway as they negotiate the turn.

Part B

In the event that the section 106 Agreement referred to in Part A is not completed by 21 December 2017 the Head of Place Development be authorised to refuse the application for the following reason:

In the absence of a completed legal obligation under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the applicant has failed to comply with CS9 (Affordable Housing) and CS12 (Developer Contributions) of the 2007 Core Strategy in relation to the provision of affordable housing units, a commuted sum towards transport measures and estate maintenance arrangements.

The Committee noted a verbal representation from the applicant. Letters of representation had been published on the Council's website and were available to the public and members of the Committee in advance of the meeting.

37 PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00542/FUL - THE ROYAL AUTOMOBILE CLUB (RAC), WOODCOTE PARK, WILMERHATCH LANE, EPSOM KT18 7EW

Description

Provision of children's facilities within walled garden, including a children's activity centre, indoor swimming pool, café and associated areas, with associated landscaping, engineering works and operations.

Decision

It was agreed to refer the application to the Secretary of State to grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) Prior to the commencement of development within the walled garden, full details of ground works within the walled garden shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and those works shall be carried out strictly only in accordance with those approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the works are in keeping with the historic setting of the listed wall and to ensure a satisfactory external appearance of the building in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM8 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document – 2015.

(3) Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground works and access construction), details and samples of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance of the building in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document – 2015

(4) Prior to their installation on site, details of the permitted children's outdoor play equipment shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance of the building in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document – 2015

- (5) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to include details of :
 - (a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
 - (b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - (c) storage of plant and materials
 - (d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
 - (e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
 - (f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation

- (g) vehicle routing
- (h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
- (i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused
- (j) details of all temporary accommodation works including temporary roads, car park, offices
- (k) Details of waste minimisation strategy- arising

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the development.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(6) Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a revised Travel Plan shall be submitted for the written approval of the local planning authority in accordance with the sustainable development aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework, Surrey County Council's "Travel Plans Good Practice Guide", and in general accordance with the 'Heads of Travel Plan' document. The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented on first occupation of the new development and for each and every subsequent occupation of the development, and the Travel Plan should thereafter maintained and developed to the satisfaction of the local planning authority.

Reason: To promote sustainable means of travel and ensure that the development does not prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of safety on the highway or cause inconvenience to other highway users as required by Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(7) Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground works and access construction), a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, details to include the planting of trees, shrubs, herbaceous plants and areas to be grassed. The landscaping scheme shall include the schedule of species, sizes, and planting densities along with the specification for aftercare maintenance. The landscaping shall take place in strict accordance with a phased programme to be agreed as part of the approved details and the planting in each phase shall be maintained for a period of five years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants that die.

Reason: To ensure the provisions and maintenance of soft landscaping, in the interest of visual amenity as required by Policies

CS1, CS2, CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007) and Policy DM5 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015

Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground (8) works and access construction, an Arboricultural Method Statement (detailing all aspects of construction and staging of works) and a Tree Protection Plan in accordance with British Standard 5837:2012 (or later revision) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details and no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought onto the site for the purposes of the development until fencing has been erected in accordance with the Tree Protection Plan. Within any area fenced in accordance with this condition, nothing shall be stored, placed or disposed of above or below ground, the ground level shall not be altered, no excavations shall be made, nor shall any fires be lit, without the prior written consent of the local planning authority. The fencing shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details, until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been moved from the site.

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(9) The development shall be constructed in accordance with the measures outlined in Energy and Sustainability Statement, dated October 2014.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes efficient use of energy, water and materials in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy 2007.

(10) The development shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the mitigation and enhancement measures outlined in the Ecological Appraisal dated October 2014 (Report Reference - EDP1297_07e) and the principles set out in the Landscape and Biodiversity Management Strategy November 2014, Family Facility, Woodcote Park, Royal Automobile Club, Epsom Ecology Position Statement 2017 C_EDP1297_18, Technical Note: Ecological Update 2016 (ref:C_EDP1297_14); and Ecological Management Plan (EMP) (ref: C_EDP1297_15b).

Reason: To safeguard and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM4 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015

(11) The developers shall give at least two weeks' notice to Surrey County Council's Principal Archaeologist of their intention to start

work on the site, and shall afford access at all reasonable times to any qualified person nominated by the Local Planning Authority, so that they shall have the opportunity to observe any works involving disturbance of the ground, and record any items of archaeological interest.

Reason: It is possible that minor items or features of archaeological interest will be disturbed in the course of the development, and these should be rescued or recorded before they are lost, as required Policy DM8 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015.

(12) If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the local planning authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015.

(13) Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted other than with the express written consent of the local planning authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the development does not impact on local underground infrastructure or harm the future occupants of the site in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy 2007 and Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015.

(14) The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved FRA produced by Atkins dated November 2014 reference no. 5127703_200/072/DG/007 and Drainage Strategy produced by Precision dated 13/09/17 reference no.002/RAC Drainage Strategy Rev.8

Reason: To ensure suitable drainage of the development to reduce risk of flooding in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy 2007.

(15) The external play facilities and café area in the walled garden shall not be used before 8am or after 6pm between April and October (inclusive) and in the winter months 5 pm on any given day. The facilities within the pool house (within the walled garden) shall not be used before 6am or after 10pm on any given day.

Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015.

(16) No construction work shall be carried out before 07:30 hours or after 18:30 hours Monday to Friday; no construction work before 08:00 or after 13:00 hours on Saturdays and no construction work of any nature shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank/Public Holidays.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015.

(17) Vehicle service deliveries to the walled garden facilities shall only take place between 8am and 6pm weekdays and between 9am to 1pm on Saturdays.

Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015.

- (18) Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground works and access construction) The applicant shall submit detailed hydraulic calculations of the final drainage calculation to include the following:
 - a) Evidence that the proposed solution will effectively manage the 1 in 30 & 1 in 100 (+Climate change allowance) for storm events. Detailed hydraulic calculation of each SUDs feature shall be included.
 - b) Detailed drawings to include: a finalised drainage layout detailing the location of SUDs elements, pipe diameters, levels, details of how SuDS elements will be protected from root damage and long and cross sections of each SuDS element and including details of any flow restrictions.
 - c) Half drain time of 24 hours shall be achieved for at least the 1:30 year storm

Reason: To ensure suitable drainage of the development to reduce risk of flooding in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy 2007.

(19) Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground works and access construction) the applicant shall submit details of how the Sustainable Drainage System will cater for system failure or exceedance events, both on and offsite.

Reason: To ensure suitable drainage of the development to reduce risk of flooding in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy 2007.

(20) Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground works and access construction) the applicant shall submit details of details of how surface water and any associated pollution risk will be dealt with during the construction of the development and how any Sustainable Drainage System will be protected and maintained. The development shall thereafter be carried out in strict accordance with those approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority

Reason: To ensure suitable drainage of the development to reduce risk of flooding in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy 2007.

(21) Prior to the commencement of the development (other than ground works and access construction) details of maintenance regimes and responsibilities of the drainage and suds elements during the operation and lifetime of the systems shall be submitted. The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure suitable drainage of the development to reduce risk of flooding in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy 2007.

(22) Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the Sustainable Urban Drainage System has been constructed as per the agreed scheme.

Reason: To ensure suitable drainage of the development to reduce risk of flooding in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy 2007.

(23) Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted the applicant shall submit a MUGA noise management and monitoring plan.

Reason: To protect the occupants of nearby residential properties from noise disturbance in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

(24) Any weldmesh fencing, panels or similar materials used to enclose the MUGAs shall be securely clamped with resilient fixings to avoid vibrations, and any advertising signs in proximity to the playing surface shall be made from vinyl or other material which is resistant to the generation of impact noise.

Reason: To protect the occupants of nearby residential properties from noise disturbance in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015

(25) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

1524_105 P7; 1524_110 P15; 1524_111 P14; 1524_112 P2; 1524_120 P9;

1524 121 P2; 1524 125 P2; 1524 126 P1; 1524 130 P6;

(90)LP001 R09 - General Arrangement Plan

(90)LP002 R01 - Landscape Colour Masterplan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).

Informatives:

- (1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.
- (2) The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, it is an offence to disturb nesting birds. Any works to trees should take place outside of the bird breeding season and if this is not possible an inspection for breeding birds should be carried out by a qualified ecologist no more than 24 hours prior to any works taking place.
- (3) The applicants are reminded of the need to secure a European Protected Species Mitigation Licence from Natural England prior to the commencement of any works hereby approved.

The Committee noted verbal representation from the applicant. Letters of representation had been published on the Council's website and were available to the public and members of the Committee in advance of the meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00244/FUL - 111 EAST STREET, EPSOM KT17 1EJ

Description

Demolition of bungalow comprising of 1 three bedroom flat and 3 two bedroom flats and associated parking (Description amended and amended drawings received 05.10.2017)

Decision

Planning permission is **PERMITTED** subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed entirely of the materials as detailed on the schedule of materials on the planning application form

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(3) No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and soft landscape proposals, including a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved landscape scheme (with the exception of planting, seeding and turfing) shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(4) Prior to the commencement of the development details of sustainability measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These details shall demonstrate how the development would be efficient in the use of energy, water and materials including means of providing the energy requirements of the development from renewable technologies. The

development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the building, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no change shall take place without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development sustainable and efficient in the use of energy, water and materials are included in the development in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy (2007).

(5) The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until they have achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 110 litres per person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) No development shall take place until details and location of the installation of bat and bird boxes to enhance the biodiversity interest of the site have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter maintained.

Reason: To enhance biodiversity and nature habitats in accordance with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM4 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(7) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for 5 vehicles to be parked, and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking / turning] area shall be retained and maintained for their designated purposes

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

- (8) (a) The vehicular means of access to the development hereby approved shall be from rear access road onto Kiln Lane only.
 - (b) There shall be no means of vehicular access from the development hereby approved to East Street.
 - (c) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until a permanent physical barrier fronting East Street has been erected to prevent the formation of unauthorised vehicular access to that road in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter that permanent physical barrier shall be permanently

retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

- (d) The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until existing access/es from the site to East Street have been permanently closed and any kerbs, verge, footway, fully reinstated.
- (e) No development shall commence on site until a pedestrian intervisibility splay of 2m by 2m has been provided on each side of the access, the depth measured from the back of the footway (or verge) and the widths outwards from the edges of the access. No fence, wall or other obstruction to visibility above 0.6m in height above ground level shall be erected within the area of such splays.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

- (9) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to include details of:
 - (a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
 - (b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - (c) storage of plant and materials
 - (d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
 - (e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
 - (f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation
 - (g) vehicle routing
 - (h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
 - (i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused
 - (j) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the hours of 8.00 and 9.15 am nor shall the contractor permit any HGVs associated with the development at the site to be laid up, waiting, in Kiln Lane or Dirdene Gardens during these times has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the development.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord with the provisions of Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(10) The windows serving bathrooms in all the dwellings hereby approved shall be glazed with obscure glass of no less than obscurity level 3.

Reason: To safeguard privacy of the occupants of adjoining properties as required by Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies Document 2015

- (11) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, the following must be undertaken prior to any development on site, in accordance with current best practice guidance:
 - (i) a site investigation and risk assessment to determine the existence, extent and concentrations of any made ground/fill, ground gas (including volatile hydrocarbons) and contaminants with the potential to impact sensitive receptors on and off site. The scope and detail of these are subject to the approval in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the investigation and risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority; and
 - (ii) if ground/groundwater contamination, filled ground and/or ground gas is found to present unacceptable risks, a detailed scheme of risk management measures shall be designed and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved measures and a verification report shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors as required by policy CS6 of the Core Strategy 2007

(12) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans:

Floorplans and elevations Rev C

3404 111 EAST STREET BLOCK PLAN

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning as required by Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007

(13) The proposed development shall not be commenced until rights to thereafter allow unrestricted vehicular access to and egress from the parking area, for the parking of five vehicles, from the rear of the site have been secured.

Reason: To ensure that the parking area can be used by the occupants of the development in order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord with the provisions of policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007.

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012

No burning of materials obtained by site clearance shall be carried out on the application site.

- (2) The water efficiency standard required under condition 5 has been adopted by the local planning authority through the Development Management Policies 2015. This standard is the 'optional requirement' detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved Document (AD) Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A paragraph A1.
- (3) The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through either:
 - (a) using the 'fittings approach' where water fittings are installed as per the table at 2.1 in the AD or
 - (b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the AD Part G Appendix A.
- (4) This form of development is considered liable for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or more of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new dwelling, even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a standardised, non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per square metre, and are charged on the net additional floorspace generated by a development.

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course.

More information and the charging schedule are available online

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-advice/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-guidance

(5) No construction work shall be carried out in such a manner as to be audible at the site boundary before 07:30 hours or after 18:30 hours Monday to Friday; no construction work shall be audible at the site boundary before 08:00 or after 13:00 hours on Saturdays and no construction work of any nature shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank/Public Holidays

39 SITE VISITS

The Committee reviewed and considered site visits and decided that a visit should be held at the appropriate time in connection with the following applications:

- Cedar Lodge, Headley Road, Epsom KT18 6BH 17/00441/FUL
- 6 The Grove, Epsom KT17 4DQ 17/00893/FUL
- Epsom House, 10 East Street, Epsom KT17 1HH 17/00385/FUL

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 9.20 pm

COUNCILLOR HUMPHREY REYNOLDS (CHAIRMAN)